Supreme Court of Nevada ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COURTS

KATHERINE STOCKS
State Court Administrator



JOHN McCORMICK Assistant Court Administrator

MEETING SUMMARY

Organization: Commission on Judicial Selection

Date and Time: Monday, January 22, 2024, at 3:00 p.m.

Venue: Zoom Meeting

Commissioners Present Guests Present

Chair, Chief Justice Elissa Cadish Taylor Avery, Las Vegas Review Journal

Vice-Chair Gregory Kamer Esq. Casey Quinn, Attorney Ms. Claudia Aguayo Esq. Melanie Thomas, Attorney

Ms. Donna Bath

Ms. Justina Caviglia Esq.

Mr. Andrew Diss

Mr. Peter Guzman

Mr. Joel Locke Esq. <u>Commission Staff Present</u>
Mr. Mateo Portelli Ms. Margarita Bautista

AGENDA

1. Call to Order

Chair Cadish convened the meeting at 3:03 p.m.

Chair Cadish welcomed Mr. Peter Guzman to the Commission as a permanent member and thanked him for his previous service as a temporary member.

Chair Cadish welcomed Claudia Aguayo to the Commission as a temporary member, appointed by the State Bar.

Chair Cadish welcomed Mateo Portelli to the Commission as a temporary member appointed by the Governor.

2. Roll Call and Determination of Quorum Pursuant to Rule 4.F.

Sec'y Stocks took roll, and a quorum was present.

3. Public Comment Pursuant to Rule 4.C.ii.

There was no public comment.

4. Approval of Meeting Summary from December 7, 2023*

Com'r Guzman made a motion to approve the minutes with no corrections.

Com'r Portelli and Com'r Cavigilia seconded the motion.

- The motion passed unanimously.
- 5. Appointment of Vice-Chair Pursuant to Rule 4.E.*

Chair Cadish entertained a motion to nominate a vice-chair.

Com'r Diss made a motion to nominate Com'r Kamer as Vice-Chair.

Com'r Guzman seconded the motion.

Com'r Kamer stated he would appreciate being able to stay as Vice-Chair during his last year on the Commission. He noted the strength of the Commission and appreciated the nomination.

- The motion passed unanimously.
- 6. Eighth Judicial District Department XXVII
 - a. Application Process*

Chair Cadish stated that normally for this agenda item, the Commission would be provided with a draft agenda for interviews to approve and asked to provide disclosures on any potential conflict of interest with any of the candidates. Chair Cadish stated that this vacancy has a different process due to the erroneous inclusion of Department 27 in the judicial candidate filing period that ran from January 2-12. Chair Cadish stated the Las Vegas Review Journal reported that Clark County inadvertently allowed two candidates to file for the Department 27 seat. Chair Cadish further stated that under statute, a judicial vacancy must be declared by the Governor and Department 27 was declared vacant on January 17, 2024, five days after the close of the judicial candidate filing period.

Chair Cadish opened the floor to discussion.

Vice-Chair Kamer stated that the process is not perfect, can be complicated, and it is the duty of the Commission to identify candidates who will be retained after appointment. Vice-Chair Kamer noted that the two individuals that thought they filed properly were in attendance at today's meeting.

Vice-Chair Kamer proposed a motion to reopen the application process to all qualified attorneys providing enough time to complete the application and the necessary steps.

Com'r Locke agreed with Vice-Chair Kamer and proposed February 5, 2024, as the filing deadline and to keep the proposed interview date of February 16, 2024.

Com'r Portelli agreed with the proposed motion and asked for clarification if the additional applicants being interviewed would be interviewed on the same date of February 16, 2024.

Chair Cadish noted that was the intent.

Vice-Chair Kamer stated that the total number of applicants may require additional interview dates.

Com'r Guzman asked for clarification on the interview dates as he had other dates down for interviews as well as if the date is a fair amount of time for the whole process as he had heard from the community that it might not be.

Vice-Chair Kamer asked for clarification on what Com'r Guzman had heard.

Com'r Guzman stated that he received a couple phone calls about the process appearing rushed and his understanding is that the Commission wants to ensure the process is transparent.

Vice-Chair Kamer stated that the rules of the Commission are clear and that the purpose is to give as many people as possible access to interviews. He further stated that the appointee will have to run for the seat with a large hill to climb because of the compressed time schedule prior to the general election in November. Vice-Chair Kamer asked Chair Cadish about her thoughts as a former applicant.

Chair Cadish stated that two weeks are sufficient to get the applications submitted. She further stated that the determination is based on sufficiency.

Com'r Diss stated that the application period was about four weeks and an additional two weeks could be sufficient. He further stated that the application may need to include instructions that the applicants cannot fundraise until the special filing period closes.

Chair Cadish asked that there be clarification for the applicants pertaining to fundraising in the application instructions.

Com'r Aguayo stated that her understanding of the proposed motion was to reopen the application, making the application open until noon on Tuesday, February 6, 2024.

Vice-Chair Kamer stated that was the intent of his motion.

Com'r Locke seconded the motion.

• The motion passed unanimously.

Chair Cadish stated that notice would go out in the afternoon pertaining to the reopening of the application.

b. Next Meeting Date

Chair Cadish proposed Friday, February 6, 2024, at 4:00 p.m. for the applicant review meeting.

Chair Cadish opened the floor for another session of public comment.

Mr. Casey Quinn provided public comment noting that "he appreciates what the Commission is doing to make this process clearer." He further stated that the two candidates have taken an alternative approach to

that of Clark County regarding the erroneous acceptance of judicial candidate filings for Department 27. He further stated that he and the other candidate have requested a decision directly from the Secretary of State because it was the Secretary of State that provided notice of acceptance.

7. Adjournment

Chair Cadish adjourned the meeting at 3:40 p.m.